








DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting  

Carson City Airport Authority (CCAA)
September 18, 2024  5:30 PM 

  Crowell Board Room 
851 East William Street, Carson City, Nevada    

  
 
  

 
 

 

Page 1 
 
 

      
       Authority Members 

 Chair  Tim Puliz   Vice Chair  Harlow Norvell 
 Treasurer  Jon Rogers  Member  Curtis Horton   

  Member  Paul Hamilton  Member  Karl Hutter 
   Member  Michael Golden 
 
 

                                    Staff  
Steve Tackes  Airport Counsel 
Corey Jenkins  Airport Manager 
Briana Munoz  Public Meetings Clerk  

  
NOTE:  A recording of these proceedings, the B written comments or 
documentation provided to the recording secretary during the meeting are public record.  These materials are on 
file in the Clerk-  
 
Audio recordings and the meeting minutes of the Carson City Airport Authority meetings are available on 
https://www.carson.org/government/city-meetings.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM  

(5:30:18)  Chairperson Puliz called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

(5:30:46)  Roll was called, and a quorum was present.  

 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

(5:30:29)  Led by Mr. Tackes. 

Attendee Name Status Arrived 
Chairperson Tim Puliz Present  
Vice Chair Harlow Norvell Present  
Treasurer Jon Rogers Absent  
Member Michael Golden Present (via WebEx)  
Member Paul Hamilton Present  
Member Curtis Horton Present   
Member Karl Hutter Present  



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              September 18, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 2 
 
 

C. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PAST MEETINGS OF THE AIRPORT AUTHORITY. 

(5:31:27)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item and entertained comments, changes, and/or a motion to approve 
the minutes of the July 17, 2024 meeting.  

(5:31:40)  MOTION: Member Horton moved to approve the minutes of the July 17, 2024 meeting. Vice 
Chair Norvell seconded the motion. Member Hutter abstained from the vote, as he was not present during 
the July 17, 2024 meeting. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

D. MODIFICATION OF THE AGENDA. 

None. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(5:32:15)  Chairperson Puliz entertained public comments; however, none were forthcoming.  

F.  

(5:33:27)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Brian Martinezmoles of Wood Rodgers provided his report, 
which is incorporated into the record.  Mr. Jenkins referenced the report from Armstrong Consultants, which is 
incorporated into the record, and responded to clarifying questions regarding the straight-in approach and Offset 
PAPI (Precision Approach Path Indicator) construction. He added that if the FAA did not approve the project as is, 
additional work would be required.  Mr. Jenkins responded to clarifying questions regarding charting activity. 

(5:39:30)  In response to Chair Puliz s question, Mr. Jenkins explained that the PAPI lights would remain off until 
the flight testing was complete. In response to Member Hutter, Mr. Jenkins stated that the timing for the flight check 
was not known and estimated that it would take place before the winter season.  

(5:40:28)  Vice Chair Norvell asked when the current PAPI would be removed and whether the current guidance 
would be straight-in once the Offset PAPI was fully approved. Mr. Jenkins clarified that there were two sets of 
PAPI installed. He added that one would be straight-in and one would be an angled approach. Mr. Jenkins stated 
that the old ones were just being replaced.  

RESULT:  APPROVED (5-0-0) 
MOVER:  Horton 
SECONDER:  Norvell 
AYES:   Puliz, Norvell, Golden, Hamilton, Horton 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS Hutter 
ABSENT:  Rogers 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              September 18, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 3 
 
 

G. CONSENT AGENDA 

None. 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE 
ACTION: APPROVAL OF A LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR THE SOLICITATION OF AN 
FBO TO MANAGE AIRPORT-OWNED TIE-DOWNS ON THE NORTHWEST RAMP 

(5:41:16)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Mr. Jenkins referenced the Staff Report and the Supporting 
Materials, which is incorporated into the record. 

(5:43:19)  Mr. Tackes explained that the proposal was a license agreement rather than a lease because the ground 
was not being leased. He added that the existing leases at the Airport involved areas of grounds for tenants to build 
on or add ramp areas. Mr. Tackes stated tie-down areas were previously leased out but the FAA stopped paying for 
pavement maintenance. He noted that since the proposal did not involve a lease, it wouldn t trigger NRS 844, which 
requires approval from the City.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

(5:44:38)  Deni French introduced himself as a Carson City resident and stated that he had difficulty finding the 
meeting agenda online. Mr. French asked whether the charter planes were being discussed and if the Airport would 
open fields to charter planes. He added that the flyovers seemed to be going well with planes staying high  and 
sounding good.  Mr. French thanked the Staff and Members for their work.  

(5:45:33)  Chair Puliz thanked Mr. French for his comments and entertained comments and questions from 
Authority Members.  

(5:46:06)  Member Hutter asked about the process following potential approval of the license agreement. Mr. 
Jenkins noted that approval of the license agreement would include the solicitation of a Fixed Base Operator (FBO) 
and went over the process, noting that it would be available to all FBOs in the field but the focus would be on 
Commercial Service FBOs as they would be the best group to handle the operation. He added that if multiple FBOs 
expressed interest, the opportunity would be divided among them but if one FBO wanted exclusive rights, a 
competitive bid process would be initiated. Mr. Tackes emphasized that the Airport was looking to ensure that the 
tie-downs were managed effectively so that the Airport could begin collecting rent.  

(5:49:04)  In response to Vice Chair Norvell s question, Mr. Jenkins clarified that the tie-down areas involved the 
northwest ramp. Member Hutter asked whether the tie-downs discussed in the license agreement would be available 
to Airport users on a monthly basis, as opposed to daily use transients. Mr. Jenkins confirmed that the tie-downs 
would be available for long-term and transient tenants.  



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              September 18, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 4 
 
 

 (5:51:07)  In response to Member Hutter, Mr. Jenkins explained that competition in the field would prevent 
egregious prices, noting that the Airport would also have tie-downs available in the event of a price-gouging 
situation. 

(5:51:56)  MOTION: Vice Chair Norvell moved to approve the draft license agreement and solicitation of 
an FBO to manage the tie-downs on the northwest ramp. Member Hutter seconded the motion. The motion 
carried 5-0-0. Member Golden abstained from the motion due to his position as a Class 1 FBO.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

I.  

(5:52:58)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. 
provided his report, which is incorporated into the record.  

(5:58:27)  Vice Chair Norvell asked about the seal and paint coat on Taxiway Bravo and Mr. Jenkins confirmed 
that trenching for utilities was expected to take place in a week. Mr. Jenkins noted that a timeline was not in place 
for pavement maintenance but would likely occur after winter. He continued with the Airport Manager s report.  

(6:01:52)  In response to Vice Chair Norvell, Mr. Jenkins provided an update regarding the Stellar 7460, noting 
that it had been approved.  

(6:02:23)  Member Hutter inquired about the planning for the runway extension, asking if the process would 
address the straightening of Taxiway Charlie or Delta. Mr. Jenkins explained that the first portion of the runway 
extension project would involve a feasibility study and 25 percent design, noting that the results of the study would 
determine what construction would look like. He mentioned that a feasibility study was not part of the initial 
planning process but there were some issues that had to be identified, including better forecasting and addressing 
FAA concerns.  

(6:04:27)  Mr. Jenkins and Mr. Martinezmoles responded to clarifying questions regarding the drainage project 
and the construction of paved shoulders.  

J.  

(6:05:43)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item.  Mr. Tackes did not have any additional items to report.  

RESULT:  APPROVED (5-0-0) 
MOVER:  Norvell 
SECONDER:  Hutter 
AYES:   Puliz, Norvell, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS Golden 
ABSENT:  Rogers 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              September 18, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 5 
 
 

K.   

(6:05:54)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item and noted that Treasurer Rogers was not in attendance.  

L. REPORT FROM AUTHORITY MEMBERS 

1. STATUS REVIEW OF PROJECTS 

2. INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

3. CORRESPONDENCE TO THE AUTHORITY 

4. STATUS REPORTS AND COMMENTS FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY 

(6:06:02)  Chairperson Puliz entertained Member reports; however, none were forthcoming.  

M. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(6:06:15)  Chairperson Puliz entertained public comments; however, none were forthcoming. 

N. AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

(6:06:22)  Chairperson Puliz entertained requests for agenda items for the next CCAA meeting; however, none 
were forthcoming.  

O. ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT 

(6:06:57)  MOTION: Chairperson Puliz adjourned the meeting at 6:06 p.m. 

The Minutes of the September 18, 2024 Carson City Airport Authority meeting are so approved on this 16th day of 
October 2024.  





____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: G-1

BOARD MEMO 2024- Meeting Date: October 16, 2024 

Agenda Title: APPROVE 
LEASE AMENDMENT TO CACTUS AIRFORCE, LLC EXECUTING A 
LEASE EXTENSION FOR A PERIOD OF AN ADDITIONAL TEN YEARS 
AND AT CURRENT MARKET RATE. 

Staff Summary: In the CARSON CITY AIRPORT LEASE AGREEMENT with 
CACTUS AIR FORCE, LLC, it states “WHEREAS, the Tenant and Landlord 
desire to enter into separate leases for the area previously subleased from Mentors 
Unlimited Inc., (Original lease recorded as Doc #000170359; Sublease recorded as 
Doc# 00013 3264) incorporating the principal terms of said lease and sublease 
into the Airport;” 

In the FIRST ADDENDUM TO LEASE with Mentors Unlimited, it states 
“Mentors Unlimited, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Mentors”); Mentors Master 
Lease provided: “Upon further negotiation and if agreement as to terms is reached 
by both parties, then in that event the term of the lease may be extended for a 
period of ten (10) years. (Mentors Lease, Section 1 on p1)” 

According to the language in the lease assignment to Cactus Air Force, LLC and 
the original lease with Mentors Unlimited, LLC, the extension is permitted. An 
appraisal was used to raise the rental rate per NRS. Staff recommends the 
extension. 
Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion Time Requested 0 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to approve the First Amendment to the Cactus Airforce, LLC. lease and 
authorize the Staff to proceed with a request for Board of Supervisor approval



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Maintain financial stability and support economic activity in the region. 

Previous Action 

May 22, 1987 - The original Mentor’s Unlimited lease was recorded  
 
June 4, 2014 - A fifth addendum with a size reduction and split off Cactus sublease 
into its own lease was recorded  
  
Executive Summary 

As the Authority knows, the Nevada Revised Statues requires that lease rates used 
must meet current market rates.  As such, and in discussions with the tenant, we 
have set the new rental rate at the most recent appraised rate. In short, the only 
change to the lease is the 10-year extension and the new current rental rate.  The 
new lease rate will increase from $1883.04 annually to $5,100 annually. Following 
CCAA approval, we will submit it to the Board of Supervisors for their approval. 
 
Recommendation:   

Approve the amendment to the Cactus Airforce, LLC. lease extending the term by 
10 years and updating the rate to the current market rate. 
 
Financial Information 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
 No    Yes 

 
If yes, account name/number & amount: 3099 General Fund 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: $5,100 annually with a CPI increase every two years 
 
Is it currently budgeted? 
 
Yes 
 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Alternatives

Do not approve the amendment as presented and suggest changes. 

Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



1 
 

APN 005-011-89 

When Recorded, Return To:  

Corey Jenkins, Airport Manager
Carson City Airport  
2600 College Parkway #6
Carson City, NV 89706 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
CARSON CITY AIRPORT LEASE AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to lease, made and entered into this __ day of October, 2024, 

between the CARSON CITY AIRPORT AUTHORITY (Landlord), whose address is 2600 

College Parkway #6 Carson City, Neveda 89706, and CACTUS AIR FORCE, LLC, a Neveda 

Limited Liability Company (Tenant), whose address is 2600 College Parkway #33, Carson City, 

Neveda 89706.  

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a lease regarding a certain portion of the 

Carson City Airport, per an original lease dated April 16, 2014 recorded June 4, 2014, as Doc. 

No. 444890 (the “Lease”).  

 WHEREAS, the Lease is scheduled to expire on December 7, 2024. 

WHEREAS, Tenant’s Lease was originally a sublease under a Master Lease held by 

Mentors Unlimited, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Mentors”); Mentors Master Lease provided: 

“Upon further negotiation and if agreement as to terms is reached by both parties, then in 

that event the term of the lease may be extended for a period of ten (10) years. (Mentors 

Lease, Section 1 on p1)”

 WHEREAS, the Landlord engaged an MAI certified appraiser for other similar land on 

the Carson City Airport, and that the most recent and current appraisal of land for FBO 

commercial leases without direct public road access is $0.34 per sq. ft per year.  

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the Lease and thereby execute this Amendment 

allowing for the one time extension provided for in the Mentors Master Lease.  

THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 

1. The Lease is extended for 10 years with a new expiration date of December 7, 2034.  



2 
 

2. The rental amount is increased upon approval of this Amendment to $0.34 per sq. ft. 

per year (15,000 sq ft times $0.34 equals $5,100 per year, or $425 per month). The 

CPI provision set forth in the Lease shall continue to apply on two year anniversary 

intervals from January 1, 2024 (Lease, Section 4 on p2). 

3. All other terms and conditions of the Lease are unchanged.  

TENANT       LANDLORD  
CACTUS AIR FORCE, LLC.                                    CARSON CITY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
                                                                                    CARSON CITY  
           
 
________________________   _____________________________ 
Rick R. Clemens, Manager     Tim Puliz, Chairman 
 

      ATTEST:  

   

       ________________________________ 
       Jon Rogers, Treasurer 
 
STATE OF NEVADA         )                     

                                      : ss  

CARSON CITY       )        

 

 On this ____ day of September , before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Rich R. Clemens, Manager of CACTUS AIR FORCE, LLC, known (or proved) to me to be the person 
described herein, who executed the foregoing instrument, and they acknowledged to me, that they have the 
requisite authority and executed the same freely and voluntarily, and for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned.             

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year hereinabove written.   

 

       ________________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC            (SEAL)   



3 
 

CARSON CITY 

Approved by the Board of Supervisors this ____ day of ____________, 2024. 

 
__________________________________ 
LORI BAGWELL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:        CITY'S LEGAL COUNSEL 

Approved as to form. 
 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
WILLIAM SCOTT HOEN, Clerk/Recorder  DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 
         AIRPORT AUTHORITY COUNSEL 
         Approved as to form 
 
         __________________________________ 
         STEVEN E. TACKES, ESQ. 
  

 

 

























































































____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: G-2

BOARD MEMO  2024-21 Meeting Date: October 16, 2024 

Agenda Title: RENEWAL OF 
THE CINDERLITE CONTRACT FOR THREE YEARS.

Staff Summary: The Cinderlite Contract will be up for renewal on November 1,
2024.  The renewal includes a 15.07% CPI increase and language that allows for
coordination of the installation of a MALSF if required. Staff recommends 
renewal.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion Time Requested 0 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to approve the renewal of the Cinderlite Contract.

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Maintain financial stability and support economic activity in the region.

Previous Action
February 15, 2012 (Item G-1) – The CCAA approved the first contract with 
Cinderlite

November 18, 2015 (Item F-2) – The CCAA approved an extension to the 
Cinderlite contract

November 14, 2018 (Item G-3) – The CCAA approved an extension to the 
Cinderlite contract

October 25, 2021 (Item G-2) – The CCAA approved an extension to the Cinderlite 
contract



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Executive Summary 
N/A 

Recommendation:   

Approve the contract renewal 
 
Financial Information 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
 No    Yes 

 
If yes, account name/number & amount: 3099 General Fund 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: 15.07% increase from $1.81 to $2.08 per ton of 
material sold from the site. 
 
Is it currently budgeted? 
Yes 
Alternatives 

Do not approve the contract as presented and suggest changes. 

Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



Surplus Rock and Aggregate Material Extension Agreement 

This Extension Agreement ("Agreement") is made effective November 1, 2024, by and between Corey 
Jenkins, A.A.E., Airport Manager, on behalf of the CARSON CITY AIRPORT AUTHORITY ("Airport") 
and CINDERLITE TRUCKING CORPORATION ("BUYER") (collectively, the "parties"). Pursuant to 
Section P (Miscellaneous) of the existing Extension Agreement entered into by the parties, the parties 
hereby agree to extend the Surplus Rock and Aggregate Material Agreement (dated November 21, 2018 
and extended on November 1, 2021) for an additional 3 years.  

All terms and conditions remain in place and are extended to the new termination date except for the 
royalty paid to the Airport. The royalty shall be adjusted to reflect the CPI increase of 15.07% from 
August 2021 to August 2024 (most current available data). The royalty paid to the Airport shall be $2.08 
per ton of material sold from the site during the term of the extension.  (15.07% increase to $1.81) 

The parties agree that BUYER will begin the restoration of terrain in the area designated by the Airport in 
coordination with the Airport Manager.  The remainder of the restoration shall occur on or before the 
termination date of the Agreement.  BUYER has been notified that the Airport may need to install a 
Medium Intensity Approach Lighting System with Sequenced Flashing Lights (MALSF) in the work 
area, and if such occurs then BUYER will cooperate with Airport so that BUYER’s work does not 
interfere with the installation of the lighting.   

P. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. This Agreement may be otherwise amended or modified only in writing and only upon the mutual 
·written consent of the parties hereto. 

2. The rights and privileges hereby granted or reserved to the parties may not be assigned. 

3. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs, successors and 
assignees of the parties hereto. 

4. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada. 
Jurisdiction over any legal action shall be in Carson City, Nevada. 

5. In the event any phrase, Section or other portion of this Agreement is deemed to be illegal, null, 
void or against public policy, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and 
shall remain in force and effect to the fullest extent permissible by law. 

6. By signing this Agreement, the signatories represent that they have full authority to bind their 
respective entities. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement has been executed. 

 
_____________________________________   ________________________________ 
Greg Lehman         Corey Jenkins, A.A.E., Airport Manager 
Cinderlite Trucking Corporation      
        ________________________________ 
        Tim Puliz, CCAA Chair 
 
_____________________________________   ________________________________ 
Date        Date 















P
E

R
P

E
T

U
A

T
E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E



Engineering
Robison N









____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: G-3

BOARD MEMO  2024-22   Meeting Date: October 16, 2024 

Agenda Title: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: DISCUSSION 
AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED GRANT OF UTILITY 
EASEMENT (“EASEMENT”) FROM CARSON CITY TO SIERRA PACIFIC 
POWER COMPANY, D/B/A NV ENERGY (“NV ENERGY”) TO BUILD AND 
MAINTAIN ELECTRIC UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE ON PORTIONS OF 
ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS (“APN”) 05-011-09, 005-021-14, 005-021-16, 
AND 005-021-17 AT THE CARSON CITY AIRPORT (“AIRPORT”).  

Staff Summary: NV Energy is requiring a duly executed easement from the city 
before providing utility improvements needed for certain development undertaken 
by an airport tenant, Arrowhead Tenant, LLC. The project had previously been 
approved by the Authority.  The terms and location are consistent with that 
approval. Staff recommends approval for the utility easement.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion  Time Requested 0 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to grant the utility easement to build and maintain electric utility 
infrastructure.

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Support economic activity in the region and maintain airport infrastructure in top 
condition.

Previous Action

November 16, 2022 (Item H-2) – CCAA approved the ground lease to Arrowhead 
Tenant, LLC for the development of aircraft storage hangars



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Executive Summary 
N/A 

Recommendation:   

Grant the utility easement 

Financial Information 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
 No    Yes 

If yes, account name/number & amount: 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: 
 
Is it currently budgeted? 
 
Alternatives 

Do not grant the utility easement as presented and suggest changes. 
 
Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



APN(s): 005-011-09; 005-021-14; 005-021-15; 005-021-16; 005-021-17 
RW# 1185-2023 
Proj. # 3010785852 
Project Name: E-2600 E COLLEGE PARKWAY-FP-COMM-E-ARROWHEAD TENANT LLC 
GOE_DIST (Rev. 8/2016) 1  
 

APN(s): 005-011-09; 005-021-14; 005-021-15; 005-021-16; 005-021-17
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Land Resources 
NV Energy 
P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20 
Reno, NV 89520 
 
 
 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
 

Carson City, a consolidated municipality and political subdivision of the State of Nevada, 
(“Grantor”), for One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration – receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged – and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Sierra Pacific Power 
Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a NV Energy (“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right 
and easement: 
 

1. to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove communication facilities and 
electric line systems for the distribution of electricity underground, consisting of cables, 
conduit, duct banks, manholes, vaults, transformers (aboveground or underground), service 
boxes/meter panels (aboveground or underground), cabinets (aboveground or underground), 
bollards (aboveground), and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements 
(“Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property legally described in Exhibit 
A attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant of Easement (“Easement 
Area”); 

2. for ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for the allowed purposes 
defined in numbered paragraph 1 of this document and for all other activities permitted by 
this agreement;   

 
3. to remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other vegetation 

and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as Grantee may deem 
necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of the Utility Facilities 
in the Easement Area. 

 
 Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee negligently constructing, 
operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible, personal property or 
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date Grantor signs the Grant of 
Easement.  However, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused 
when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered paragraph 3 above. 

 
Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no building, structure 

or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on or within the Easement Area without 
the prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, 
drainage, trees, bridges, and signage.  Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s consent by both signing 



APN(s): 005-011-09; 005-021-14; 005-021-15; 005-021-16; 005-021-17 
RW# 1185-2023 
Proj. # 3010785852 
Project Name: E-2600 E COLLEGE PARKWAY-FP-COMM-E-ARROWHEAD TENANT LLC 
GOE_DIST (Rev. 8/2016) 2  
 

Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement.  Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to maintain, use and 
otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; provided, however, that all such purposes and 
uses do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein and are in all respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights 
herein, Grantee’s electrical practices, and the National Electrical Safety Code. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantor and Grantee waive any right each may have to a trial 
by jury in respect of litigation directly or indirectly arising out of, under or in connection with this Grant of 
Easement.  Grantor and Grantee further waive any right to consolidate any action in which a jury trial has 
been waived with any other action in which a jury trial cannot be or has not been waived. 

 
[signature page follows] 

  



APN(s): 005-011-09; 005-021-14; 005-021-15; 005-021-16; 005-021-17 
RW# 1185-2023 
Proj. # 3010785852 
Project Name: E-2600 E COLLEGE PARKWAY-FP-COMM-E-ARROWHEAD TENANT LLC 
GOE_DIST (Rev. 8/2016) 3  
 

GRANTOR: 

CARSON CITY, a consolidated municipality and 
political subdivision of the State of Nevada 
 
___________________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE

By:  ________________________________________________ 
PRINT NAME 

Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 

) ss.
COUNTY OF   ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 20____ by _____________________as 
_____________________ of Carson City, a consolidated municipality and political subdivision of the State 
of Nevada. 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Signature of Notarial Officer 
 
 
Notary Seal Area  









____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: H-

BOARD MEMO  2024-23 Meeting Date: October 16, 2024 

Agenda Title: FOR DISCUSSION: THANK OPEN HOUSE COMMITTEE FOR 
THEIR WORK IN PLANNING THE 2023 AND 2024 AVIATION FESTIVAL 
AND OPEN HOUSE.

Staff Summary: The planning committee has dedicated a significant amount of 
time and effort in making the Aviation Festival and Airport Open House possible 
and an improving success year over year.  The makeup of the committee is going 
to change for next year, so this is an opportunity for the Carson City Airport 
Authority to properly thank them for their efforts.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion Time Requested: 15 Minutes

Proposed Motion

N/A

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Promote aviation to current and future generations

Previous Action

N/A

Executive Summary

Thank you for all the time that you dedicated to planning the open house and your 
hard work



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Chair of the planning committee Robert Grant 
Secretary/Treasurer Trish Jones
Military Liaison Mike Zieba
Volunteers/Sanitation Katherine Baran 
Airport Facilities/Ramp Supervision Rick Lee 
Static Displays Dayton Murdock 
Sponsorship Kevin Updegrove 
Youth Luz Sandoval 
Marketing Matt Bruback 
Civil Air Patrol Phil Wells
Member Larry Jones 
Member Sydne O’Neal 

Recommendation:   

N/A 

Financial Information: 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
 No    Yes 

If yes, account name/number & amount: 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: 
 
Is it currently budgeted? 
 
Alternatives 

N/A 



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Board Action Taken:

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: H-2

BOARD MEMO  2024-24   Meeting Date: October 16, 2024 

Agenda Title: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVE 
PROPOSED LEASE AMENDMENT (“AMENDMENT”) ENTERED INTO 
BETWEEN CARSON TAHOE EXECUTIVE, LLC (“CTE”), AS TENANT, AND 
CARSON CITY AND THE CARSON CITY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
(“CCAA”), TOGETHER AS LANDLORD. THE AMENDMENT WILL 
RECONFIGURE THE LEASED AREA TO ACCOMMODATE A NEW 
HANGAR DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

Staff Summary: The original lease was established with Mountain West Aviation,
LLC on August 20, 2008, for the purpose of constructing hangars. It was assigned
prior to construction, and subsequently assigned to CTE. This proposed
amendment will enable the current tenant, CTE, to build two hangars with a
revised design that differs from the original site plan. This adjustment aims to
enhance functionality and better serve the needs of the airport community. Staff
recommends approval.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion  Time Requested: 15 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to approve the proposed amendment as presented to accommodate the new 
hangar development plan.

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Support economic activity in the region and maintain airport infrastructure in top 
condition.



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Previous Action

August 20, 2008 (Item G-1) – The CCAA approved the lease as a part of a land 
swap for the relocation of the existing fuel farm 
 
August 20, 2008 (Item G-2) – The new lease was assigned to KCXP Investments 
 
November 16, 2022 (Item H-1) – The Authority voted to issue a Notice of Default 
to KCXP Investments, LLC., per the breach provisions of the lease. The Notice of 
Default was sent on November 17, 2022 and KCXP Investments, LLC was given a 
deadline of January 18, 2023 to respond.  
 
January 18, 2023 (Item H-3) – A response was received, and the agenda item was 
continued to the February 2023 CCAA meeting. 
   
February 15, 2023 (Item H-1) – The CCAA approved an agreement to postpone or 
avoid lease termination with KCXP Investments. 
 
September 20, 2023 (Item H-2) – The CCAA approved a lease assignment and the 
assignment of the agreement to postpone or avoid lease termination from KCXP 
Investments to Carson Tahoe Executive. 
 
Executive Summary 

The proposed lease amendment will enable Carson Tahoe Executive to move 
forward with the construction of two new hangars on the airport.  The new site 
plan is mutually beneficial for all parties.      

Recommendation:   

Approve the lease amendment 

Financial Information: 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
No    Yes 

 
If yes, account name/number & amount: 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: 



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Is it currently budgeted? 

Alternatives 

Do not approve the amendment and suggest changes. 

Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 













































































































October 16, 2024

Carson City Airport Manager’s Report Prepared by Corey Jenkins 

Managers’ Report

Working with developers who are interested in building hangars at the airport
o Three meetings with potential developers 

Working on a solution to create an access point to the vacant land south east of the airport 
terminal building 
Pavement Maintenance

o Airport Operations and Maintenance are working on the next phase of pavement 
maintenance 

 This project is large in scope and we are in the process of determining if it 
will be required to go out to bid or not depending on how it will be 
phased. 

 Most of the ground lease holders have complied with our request for updated hangar 
certification forms. 

o We have held multiple meetings with ground lease holders to assist them with 
completing updated hangar certification forms and with understanding of the 
ground lease requirements to ensure compliance. 

 Attended a meeting with Armstrong Engineering and the City Building Department 
o The Permit application for the SRE building is nearly complete. 
o The outstanding items are only with the formatting of the application.
o The Special Use Permit has expired and must be reapplied for. 

 The utilities have been put in place across taxiway Bravo. 
o Taxiway Bravo was closed for three days for the project. 
o The closure was just around the area of the work and did not prevent any aircraft 

from accessing the runway. 
o Work will begin on pavement soon, which will also result in a taxiway closure 

because of the work required in the safety area. 
 Working with the City on updating Title 19 with the changes approved by the CCAA 

o The second reading is going to be on October 17th and Steve Tackes will be 
attending the board meeting. 

 Attended the Lithium Summit put on by the Governor’s office.  
o Many of the attendees and presenters are airport users 
o The future of the Lithium Mining industry in Nevada looks promising and will

bring additional corporate traffic to the airport.
 Attended a meeting with Care flight 

o Discussed their operations and how the airport can assist them. 
 The annual audit is progressing well and should be completed soon. 
 Worked with board members, members of the community, and the FAA to assist with the 

development of a handout with guidance on operations at non-towered  



Fuel Flowage

Total
 Self-Serve Full-Service Total Combined % Change 

Month 100LL Jet A 100LL Jet A Gallons
Fuel Flowage 

Fee
Annual 
Change

January-24 5932 1389 2655 10751 20727  $  1,036.36 97%
February-24 6355 637 1343 13511 21847  $  1,092.34 12%

March-24 7206 353 2737 13374.9 23670 $  1,183.51 52%
April-24 9776 334 3489 8998 22598  $  1,129.89 5%
May-24 10401 1540 4241 28959 45141  $  2,257.05 57%
June-24 10481 1471 4720 12459 29132 $  1,456.59 9%
July-24 11100 739 5188 21112 38139  $  1,906.95 13%

August-24 10902 1359 4781 25886 42929  $  2,146.44 21%
September-24 7290 2432 4306 17146 31175  $  1,558.73 -17%

October-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%
November-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%
December-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%

Aircraft Operations

2024 ADS-B Airport Operations

Month Arrivals Departures
Total 

Operations
Annual 
Change 

January-24 1457 1483 2940 32%
February-24 1295 1265 2560 -27%

March-24 1238 1242 2480 0%
April-24 4312 4312 8624 68%
May-24 4251 4261 8512 62%
June-24 2493 2481 4974 -18%
July-24 2320 2533 4853 -25%

August-24 1952 2237 4189 -20%
September-24 1457 1674 3131 -53%

October-24 0 0 0 -100%
November-24 0 0 0 -100%
December-24 0 0 0 -100%

Total Annual 20775 21488 42263 -33%





Carson City Airport Authority-2

As of September 30, 2024

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:10 PM GMT-07:00   1/2



Carson City Airport Authority-2

As of September 30, 2024

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:10 PM GMT-07:00   2/2



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:13 PM GMT-07:00   1/4



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:13 PM GMT-07:00   2/4



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:13 PM GMT-07:00   3/4



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:13 PM GMT-07:00   4/4



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July - September, 2024

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:12 PM GMT-07:00   1/3



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July - September, 2024

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:12 PM GMT-07:00   2/3



Carson City Airport Authority-2

July - September, 2024

Accrual Basis  Thursday, October 10, 2024 06:12 PM GMT-07:00   3/3


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	Engineer's Report
	G-1 Cactus Airforce Lease Amendment
	G-2 Cinderlite Renewal
	G-3 Easement
	H-1 Thank Open House Committee
	H-2 CTE Amendment
	Manager's Report
	Treasurer's Report



